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Letter to Shareholders

s you probably know, we at Rowe have
significant insider ownership. Accordingly,
our interests are aligned solidly with yours.
From a short-term view, 2005 was not
good: our largest business unit had declining revenue,
both of our operating divisions had operating losses
and we experienced a consolidated loss from recurring
operations. The longer-term view of 2005, however, gives
reasons for optimism for the future. Though much work
remains to achieve full utilization, we have largely addressed
the problems we had implementing our Enterprise Resource
Planning ("ERP") application suite we installed in Rowe
Furniture; Storehouse opened a record number of new
stores; and Rowe Furniture launched its first product line
under our designer licensed program with Jonathan Adler.
The program is intended to enable us to partner with
“in demand” designers to create new product lines. In
addition, in November 2005, we retained outside consul-
tants to perform a detailed review of the Company’s

Gerald M. Birnbach, Chairman of the Board anyd President
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operations and have retained them to assist us with
implementing a number of recommended initiatives that
are intended to help Rowe Furniture return to profitability.

| think the launch of our first designer licensed program
merits some additional discussion. In previous years’ Letter
to Shareholders, I've mentioned my firmly-held bejief that
the consumer’s taste for many products, including home
furnishings, is getting more sophisticated, and that we
should appeal to that higher taste level rather than attempt
to chase a low-price, low-style market position. || believe
that our initial customer response to this line, as well as
Storehouse’s continuing sales growth with merchandise
featuring great design, confirms that we chose the right
strategic path.

2005 REVIEW
Net shipments for fiscal year 2005 were $299.4 million, an
increase of 1.4% from 2004. Gross profit margin was 31.4%
compared to 35.1% in the prior year. While Storehouse




delivered a second year of 50% gross profit margins—a
very satisfactory level—Rowe Furniture experienced a
number of negative factors resulting in a gross profit
margin of 11.9%, down sharply from the 21.1% last
year. Rowe Furniture’'s margin was adversely affected
by problems in production scheduling and rising raw
material costs, which were exacerbated by material
shortages associated with 2005's hurricanes. Further,
Rowe’s efforts to meet customer order delivery dates
resulted in increased labor and transportation costs,
including overtime and expedited freight. Selling and
administrative costs increased $8.8 million as new store
growth and higher overall revenue in Storehouse drove
higher store payroll, store rent and other occupancy costs,
and home delivery expense. Interest expense increased
slightly to $2.9 million from $2.6 million in the prior
fiscal year.

Our net loss from continuing cperations was $(2.8) million
or $(.74) per share.

BUSINESS UNITS

Storehouse

In 2005, Storehouse:

e Grew revenue 8.0% or $11.2 million, to a record
$151.8 million.

* Opened eight new stores (net of two closings and the
loss of our New Orleans store), adding presence in our
existing key markets of Dallas and Houston, TX; New
Jersey; the Washington D.C. metropolitan area; Orlando,
FL; and Charlotte, NC.

e Continued our sales momentum in key merchandise
categories paced by a 21% growth in accessories and
an almost 50% growth in sales in our textile program.

e Further expanded our direct marketing through additional
catalogs and expanded page counts. One catalog was
added during the year, bringing the total to five, with
a 27% increase in catalogs distributed. Our catalog is now
typically 100 pages.

Rowe Furniture

In 2005, Rowe:

* Launched our first designer licensed program in
conjunction with Jonathan Adler. Mr. Adler, who initially
became known for his pottery design, is a well-known
interior designer as well, who has created a fresh new
look with his “Happy Chic” designs. We are the
exclusive upholstery manufacturer for this line, which is
sold in selected Storehouse locations, Jonathan Adler’s
own stores, as well as a growing number of other specialty
stores. Rowe Furniture also is the importer of coordinating
accent pieces including such items as occasional tables,
screens and buffets. This bench-made upholstery collection
is priced well above our other product lines to reflect more
expensive materials, handcrafting and design costs
incurred to bring this successful product line to market.

¢ Reduced our backlog from the prior year to a more
appropriate level.

e Largely stabilized our Enterprise Resource Planning
(“ERP") system implemented initially in late 2004.

THE ROWE COMPANIES

During fiscal 2005, we completed the sale of three real estate
investment properties. Gross proceeds of $16.5 million were
used to reduce debt and for general corporate purposes.

In January, shortly after the end of our fiscal year, we
completed a comprehensive refinancing, paying off our
existing revolving credit facility, term loan and capital lease




obligation and replacing them with a larger (up to $50 million)
revolving credit facility and a $7 million Tranche B term
loan. This gives us the resources necessary to fund our

working capital requirements and undertake initiatives
intended to grow revenue and return to profitability. We

continue to pursue additional equity or debt financing to
fund our initiatives, including further expansion of our
Storehouse chain.

OUR PLANS FOR 2006 INCLUDE:

¢ Focusing on absorption of the growth in Storehouse
stores achieved in 2005, as well as opening five to six
new locations. Three have already opened since the
start of our fiscal year: in the Downtown at the Gardens
center in Palm Beach Gardens, FL; in Manayunk, PA near
Philadelphia; and in the Wellington Mall in West Paim
Beach, FL. The Wellington store features a new store
layout and fixtures from noted architect and designer
Michael Graves. Other new stores will also be in our
existing markets, particularly in Atlanta, GA. We wil!
invest in store remodeling in 2006, including updating

some key locations in Atlanta, which, combined with
the new stores, is expected to give us improved presence
and performance in Storehouse’s headquarters city.

Restoring profitability in our Rowe Furniture business.
As noted above, the Company retained outside consultants
to perform a detailed review of the business strategy
and operations of Rowe Furniture. This review has
confirmed and sharpened our view of the necessary
changes we must undertake. We have already begun
implementing a number of these initiatives, including
an overall reduction in staff through the consolidation
and elimination of various management and other positions,
and we will continue with additional initiatives as we
move forward into 2006.

e Continuing the growth of our Storehouse direct marketing
business. Our internet and catalog operations at Stprehouse
continue to expand at double-digit growth rates.

In conclusion, 2005 has been a difficult, trying and, in
many ways, frustrating year for us. Nonetheless, we
remained innovative and true to our strategy. | remain
confident that our strategic direction is correct.

As always, it is our employees throughout our organiza-
tion who make it happen and deserve the gratitude of
our shareholders. | believe we have the most talented
organization in the home furnishings industry. And our
stockholders and Board of Directors have, in many ways
during this difficult year, expressed their support as we
have worked to overcome these difficulties. To jall of
you—employees, Directors and especially shareholders—
thank you for your continuing efforts and support.

Finally, it is with great sadness that we mark the passing

of one of my oldest friends, Allan Tofias, who senved this
Company as a Director for many years until his death this
past November. His sage advice and steady friendship will
be missed by all of us.

: éﬂ%
Gerald M. Birnbach

Chairman of the Board and President
February, 2006
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Five Year Summary

The Rowe Companies Annual Report 2005

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
7 (52 weeks) - | (52 weeks) (52 weeks) (52 weeks)  (52|weeks)

{in thousands, except per share amounts) e ' ‘
Net shipments $299,391 | $295,203 $278,373 $269,146  $267,387
Gross profit '9'3,9.44, 103,559 100,125 95,683 38,822
Operating income (loss) (15,190) 3,183 4,896 (525)  (11,700)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations(”‘z"B) (9.,797) 1816 627 (2,854) (8,985)
Net earnings (loss) @3 $- (5305 % 890 $§ 2214 % 1,959 $ ((6,243)
Working capital $ 28419 | $ 28,265 § 24947 $ 14,182 § 33,066
Total assets 13_4,215 139,121 131,850 177,223 157,273
Long-term debt 34,1837 24,077 34,312 63,475 52,096
Stockholders’ equity $ 47599 $ 52,680 $ 51,036 $ 48274 $ 46,208
Ratio of current assets to current liabilities 1.7t01 17101 1.6to1 1.31t01 1.7 to 1
Ratio of cash and receivables to current liabilities 0.4t 0.5t01 0.61t0 1 04101 0.7 to 1
Net earnings (loss) from continuing

operations per common share—basic $ 741 % 006 $ 005 $ (0220 $ | (068
Net earnings (loss) per common share—basic $ (04001 % 007 $ 017 $ 015 $ | (0.48)
Weighted average common shares 13,288 13,198 13,167 13,152 13,135
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations

per common share assuming dilution $ 0.741% 006 §$§ 005 §$ (0220 $ | (068
Net earnings (loss) per common :

share assuming dilution $ ©40 ¢ 007 $ 017 $ 015 % | (048
Weighted average common shares and equivalents 13,288 13,546 13,205 13,193 13,135
Cash dividends paid per share $ o —1%- — 3 — 3 — $ | 011
(1) The results of operations for 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001 have been restated to reflect the discontinuation of certain real estate operations.

See Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. )

(2) The results of operations for 2001 include a loss, net of taxes, of approximately $2.7 million, or $0.20 per share, associated with the write-off

of receivables and other balances resulting from the bankruptcy of Homelife Furniture Corporation.

(3) The results of operations for-2002 and 2001 have been restated to reflect the discontinuation of operations at The Mitchell Gold Company. See

Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

The Rowe Companies (the “Company”) operates through
two subsidiaries in the home furnishings industry. Rowe
Furniture, Inc. ("Rowe” or the “manufacturing segment”)
manufactures quality, upholstered furniture serving the
middle and upper middle market primarily throughout the
United States. Storehouse, Inc. (“Storehouse” or the “retail
segment”) is a multi-channel lifestyle home furnishings
retailer with 69 stores from Texas through the Southeast
and Mid-Atlantic markets.

During fiscal 2005, Rowe made progress in resolving the

problems that resulted from the implementation of its -

Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) system in late 2004
and related manufacturing process changes undertaken
in conjunction with and following the ERP implementa-
tion. An ERP system is a fully-integrated set of programs
and data bases. In our case, the suite of application pro-
grams includes order processing, payroll, human resources,
production planning and scheduling, purchasing, inven-
tory management and accounting. These problems and

process changes combined to significantly impact Rowe's

ability to produce and ship orders in a timely and efficient

manner, resulting in downtime in the production facilities; -

overtime to compensate for the downtime; expedited in-
bound transportation of critical materials and expedited

shipments to customers, both at significant excess cost.

The resulting disruption in the orderly flow of product to
Rowe's dealers and their customers resulted in the loss of
follow-on orders from some dealers, resulting in lower
shipments in the latter months of 2005. The Company
believes it has largely resolved these problems to the
extent it is able to utilize the ERP system to schedule pro-
duction and order materials and must now concentrate
on better utilizing the full capabilities of the ERP system by
modifying business processes and conducting additional
employee training.
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The focus in 2006 turns to restoring dealer and consumer
confidence in Rowe to pre-ERP levels, cost reductions and
revenue growth, and improving our efficiency to return
Rowe to profitability. Toward this end, in November 2005,
the Company retained the Carl Marks Advisory Group,
LLC ("CMAG") to perform an organizational review and
assessment. In December 2005, following completion of
this review, Rowe entered into a six-month consulting
agreement with CMAG pUrsuant to which three CMAG
consuitants have assumed full-time interim responsibili-
ties with Rowe. The Company, with the assistance of
CMAG, believes operational improvements and a return
to profitability can be achieved. Changes recommended
by CMAG under review include, among others, an overall
reduction in staff through the consolidation and elimina-
tion of various management and other positions, central-
izing certain operations and continuous review of certain
product lines. The Company also intends to focus on
developing new products that have lower manufacturing

costs, reducing raw materials and shipping costs and

improving inventory management, manufacturing quality
control and labor efficiencies.

Storehouse also embarked on its aggressive store opening
plan for 2005, with ten new store openings, three store
relocations and two store closings during the year. New
stores increase selling and administrative expenses and
typically need three to six months of operations before
they contribute positively to operating income on a monthly
basis. In addition, Rowe's ERP-related issues also impacted

Storehouse’s operations especially in the first half of 2005,

as customer orders that included pieces ordered from
Rowe were delayed. In an effort to reduce expenses,
improve processes and allow management to focus more
on improving the profitability of existing locations, more
limited growth is planned for Storehouse in 2006, with six
new store openings, two closings and the anticipated re-
opening of its New Orleans store, closed in 2005 due to
damage from Hurricane Katrina.




RESULTS OF CPERATIONS
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Year Ended November 27, 2005 Versus Year Ended November 28, 2004

2005 2004 $ Variance % Variance
(in thousands)
Net shipments:
Manufacturing, total $167,811 $174,170 $ (6,359) -3.7%
Sales to retail segment , (20,217) (19,557) (660) 3.4%
Manufacturing, net of eliminations 147,594 154,613 (7,019) -4.5%
Retail 151,797 140,590 11,207 8.0%
Consolidated net shipments $299,391 $295,203 $ 4,188 1.4%
Gross profit:
Manufacturing $ 17,628 $ 32,548 $(14,920) +45.8%
Retail 76,316 " 71,011 5,305 7.5%
Consolidated gross profit $ 93,944 $103,559 $ (9,615) -9.3%
Gross margin:
Manufacturing 11.9% 21.1%
Retail 50.3% 50.5%
Consolidated gross margin 31.4% 35.1%
Selling and administrative expenses: .
Manufacturing -$ 23,853 $ 23,804 $ 49 0.2%
Retail 78,640 70,295 8,345 11.9%
Other 6,641 6,277 364 5.8%
Consolidated selling and administrative expenses: $109,134 $100,376 $ 8,758 8.7%
Operating income (loss):
Manufacturing $ (6,225) $ 8,744 $(14,969)
Retail (2,324) 716 (3,040)
Other - (6,641) (6,277) (364)
Consolidated operating income (loss) $ (15,190) $ 3,183 $(18,373)
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Net Shiprments :

Net shipments increased 1.4% in 2005 from 2004, from
higher shipments at Storehouse. Rowe's shipments decreased
from prior year levels. Shipments from Rowe to Storehouse
increased slightly compared to last year.

Manufacturing segment net shipments decreased in 2005
compared to 2004, primarily as a result of disruptions in
order processing, scheduling, and production following
the ERP implementation during the fourth quarter of 2004,
Rowe also recorded additional costs relating to returns and
allowances for various syétem-related issues. Incoming
orders declined approximately 16% on a dollar basis com-
pared to last year. The increase in manufacturing backlog
during October and November 2004 (resulting from the
disruptions from the ERP implementation) was drawn
down by $5.8 million during 2005, offsetting the decline
in orders in 2005.

Retail segment net shipments increased in 2005 over 2004.
The accessories and textiles categories continued to grow
and were the top two percentage growth categories, and
the first and third largest dollar growth categories.
Bedroom and tables were also solid performers, with the
second and fourth largest dollar increases. Overall, same
store sales increased 0.8% over 2004. The Company
opened ten new retail stores during 2005, while three

stores were relocated and two closed during the year. One -

of the stores closed during 2005 was damaged due to
flooding associated with Hurricane Katrina in New Orleans.
At this time, work is proceeding to recpen this store during
2006. In addition to the anticipated reopening of the New
Orleans store, six stores are slated to open during 2006,
along with two closings.

Gross Profit ,

Gross profit declined in 2005 compared to 2004 due to
lower shipments at Rowe and the costs of production
inefficiencies in the manufacturing segment, as well as
increases in certain costs. Gross margin, or gross profit as

12

a percéntage of net shipments, declined from 35.1% in
2004 to 31.4% in 2005, due principally to the increase in
costs in the manufacturing segment.

Manufacturing segment gross profit and gross margin
declined substantially in 2005 from 2004 levels caused
principally by disruptions in production, scheduling and
manUfacturing productivity resulting from ERP implemen-
tation and manufécturing process change issues. On slightly
less volume shipped in 2005 versus 2004, materials costs
increased approximately $1.5 million, principally due to
increases in the cost of petroleum-derived products such as
foam and packaging materials, and somewhat to increased
prices for plywood and steel springs and bed mechanisms.
Direct labor costs increased approximately $2.2 million due
to downtime caused by inefficient scheduling, the periodic
shortage of intérnéliy manufactured frame parts, and out-
of-stock issues with certain strong selling fabrics. Overhead
costs increased $3.1 million over last year as a result of
overtime cqsts‘ ($0.8 fnillion) due to low rates of produc
tion, increases in customer service costs (approximately
$1.1 million) and-certain other categories of indirect labor
(approximately $0.7 million). Certain costs included in the
2004 first half were not repeated in 2005, such as the
accelerated depfeciétion on scheduling software incurred
last year of $1.2 million. Transportation costs increased
approximately $1.4 million, largely due to increased use
and cost of third pérty services ($1.4 million) to expedite
deliveries and accommodate customers. Increased fuel
costs within our fleet of trucks were largely passed through
to customers through automatic fuel surcharges. -

During the foufth quarter of 2005, Rowe implemented a
price increase (averaging approximately 6% overall and
becoming effective during the first quarter of 2006) to off-
set the rising costs of plywood, steel and petroleum derived
products, particularly in the aftermath of Hurricanes Katrina
and Rita. Rowe continues to work to maintain satisfactory
levels of efficient scheduling and production, largely chal-

lenged now by reduced incoming orders and fabric




availability rather than the shortages of internally manufac
tured frame parts that impacted the Company in the first
half of the year. Staffing and other resources have been
added to address the fabric availability issues and the pro-
duction inefficiencies and, as discussed under “Overview,”
a number of operational improvement initiatives recom-
mended by CMAG are currently under consideration and
together are expected to result in improving gross margins.

Retail gross profit increased reflecting the increase in ship-
ments, while retail gross margin decreased slightly from
the prior year period, Iargely due to sales of clearance
items at stores that were closing for relocation at points
during the period.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses increased by 8.7%
overall in 2005. Retail segment expenses accounted for vir-
tually all of the increase. As a percentage of net shipments,
total selling and administrative expenses increased 2.5%
over 2004. Expenses at new stores opened in 2005 and
2004 accounted for $7.9 million of the $8.3 million increase
in retail segment selling and administrative expenses in
2005 versus 2004.

Retail segment selling and administrative expenses
increased in all categories, driven by costs at fourteen
new stores opened since May 2004 (four in fiscal 2004,
ten in 2005). Storehouse closed two stores during 2005
(one of which was damaged by Hurricane Katrina and is
expected to re-open in 2006), and relocated three others
during the year. -

Storehouse also added costs to support direct marketing
since the first quarter of fiscal 2004 and in mid 2004 added
a cross-dock warehouse facility to support new store
openings in New Jersey and Pennsylvania. Offsetting these
increases, in part, has been favorable healthcare costs.
Storehouse anticipates opening six new stores in fiscal
2006. As these additional stores open, retail selling and
administrative expenses are expected to increase.

The Rowe Companies Annual Report 2005

Manufacturing segment selling and administrative expenses
were essentially unchanged from 2004. Salary expense in
2005 was higher than 2004 principally due to the capitali-
zation of costs related to the ERP implementation in 2004,
and severance accruals recorded in 2005, offset by the
reversal of previously accrued software maintenance costs
in conjunction with the settlement of litigation in the first
quarter of 2005.

The increase in other selling and administrative expenses
represents increased legal fees and bank charges jncurred
in connection with the re-negotiation of the Company’s
bank lending arrangements during fiscal 2005 dug to the
Company's operating performance issues. In preparation
for the internal control feport and audit under Section 404
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that will be required in
the Company's fiscal 2007 annual report, the Jompany
expects its other selling and administrative expenses to

increase over the next two fiscal years.

The Company expects a number of changes in selling and
administrative expenses in 2006. Pursuant to Rowe’s six-
month consulting agreement with CMAG, entered into in
December 2005, the Company must pay CMAG $160,000
per month, or $960,000 over the term of the agreement,
and may also pay CMAG a yet-to-be determined success
fee depending on whether certain objectives are achieved.
Among the initiatives recommended by CMAG jthat are
expected to be undertaken is an overall reduction in staff
through the consolidation and elimination of variqus man-
agement and other positions. The ultimate savings achieved
through staff reductions or relocations will depend upon
various considerations, including the number of employees
to be relocated or terminated and their locations, the avail-
ability of other jobs within the Company, and the level of
severance benefits. Since October 2005, the Company has
taken steps to achieve annualized savings of approximately
$3.4 million through headcount reductions at a cost of
approximately $0.6 million in severance costs.
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Operating Earnings

Operating earnings declined by $18.4 million to a loss of
$15.2 million in 2005 as a result of lower shipments at
Rowe; manufacturing segment operating inefficiencies,
service costs, returns and other manufacturing-related
costs; and retail segment selling and administrative
expenses primarily resulting from new stores and related
costs, as discussed above.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased by $284,000 from 2004 to
2005 as interest on increased borrowings under the
revolver loan during 2005, as well as increased rates (both
the base rates and the spread over base rates) offset the
savings from the maturity in late 2004 of the interest rate
swap agreement entered into in 2000 in conjunction with
the original lease agreement for the Elliston manufacturing
facility. The spread over base rates on the Company's out-
standing debt increased by 100 basis points effective with
the beginning of the second quarter of 2005, and during
the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company paid default
rates of interest on most of its outstanding debt, as the
lenders increased the spread over base rates applicable to
the outstanding debt by an additional 200 basis points.

As a result of the refinancing of the Company’s outstand-
ing debt in January 2006, the Company's blended interest
rate should decline from 2005 levels, subject to fluctua-
tions in market interest rates. In the first quarter of 2006,
the Company has been maintaining higher outstanding
balances on this debt compared to the first quarter of fiscal
2005. The benefit of the blended rate reduction achieved
by the refinancing will be offset by these higher outstand-
ing balances as long as they are maintained. The Company
will also writeoff unamortized loan costs in the first quarter
of 2006.
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Other income, net, increased $269,000 in 2005 over
2004, primarily due to a gain recognized on the settle-
ment of litigation in the first quarter of 2005. The
Company collected $725,000, less certain expenses, as a
result of the settlement. Offsetting this gain was reduced
net rental income, principally due to the absence in 2005
of certain short-term leases in effect during 2004. The
Company also recorded a gain of approximately $100,000
based on insurance coverage of damage to the New
Orleans retail store.

Earnings from continuing operations before taxes declined
from earnings of $1,310,000 in 2004 to a loss of
$(17,078,000) in 2005, reflecting the factors discussed
above.

The effective tax rate changed from 37.7% in 2004 to
42.6% in 2005 as a result of certain federal and state tax
credits for prior years taken in the current year and reversal
of certain state tax reserves due to a change in estimates
of risks associated with certain state tax positions taken in
prior years, resulting in additional tax benefits of approxi-
mately $740,000.

At November 27, 2005, the Company’'s balance sheet
included $3.1 million of net deferred tax assets (current
and non-current). In accordance with FAS 109, “Accounting
for Income Taxes,” the Company considered the following

factors in determining that these future tax benefits are

more likely than not realizable:

¢ The Company has over 50 years of profitable opera-
tions in its history.

¢ Thelossin 2005 was largely a consequence of Rowe's
implementation of its ERP system in late 2004, and
while some negative impacts will carry over into
2006 and perhaps beyond, a return to profitability at
Rowe is anticipated due to the steps taken in late
2005 and to date in early 2006, as discussed else-
where in this report.
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Year Ended November 28, 2004 Versus Year Ended November 30, 2003

2004 2003 $ Variance % Variance

(in thousands)
Net shipments:
Manufacturing, total $174,170 $175,303 $(1,133) ~0.6%
Sales to retail segment {19,557) (19,898) 3 ~1.7%
Manufacturing, net of eliminations 154,613 155,405 (792) —0.5%
Retail 140,590 122,968 17,622 14.3%
Consolidated net shipments $295,203 $278,373 $16,830 6.0%
Gross profit:
Manufacturing $ 32,54‘87_ ' $ 39,757 $ (7,209) -18.1%
Retail 71,011 60,368 10,643 17.6%
Consolidated gross profit $103,559 $100,125 $ 3,434 3.4%
Gross margin:
Manufacturing 21.1% 25.6%
Retail 50.5% 49.1%
Consolidated gross margin 35.1% 36.0%
Selling and administrative expenses:
Manufacturing $ 23,804 $ 22,940 § 864 3.8%
Retail 70,295 65,700 4,595 7.0%
Other 6,277 6,589 (312) +4.7%
Consolidated selling and administrative expenses,

including retail restructuring and other charges $100,376 $ 95,229 $ 5,147 5.4%
Operating income (loss):
Manufacturing $ 8,744 $ 16,817 $(8,073)
Retail . 716 (5,332) 6,048
Other (6,277) (6,589) 312
Consolidated operating income (loss) $ 3,183 $ 4,89 $(1,713)
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et Shipments
Net shipments increased 6.0% in 2004 over 2003, primar-
ily from increased shipments in our retail segment.
Manufacturing segment shipments declined slightly from
prior year levels.

Retail segment net shipments increased $17.6 million, or .

14.3%, in 2004 over 2003. Every product category showed
growth over 2003, particularly accessories (49%), chairs
(32%), tables (31%)‘, office and library walls (14%), and
upholstery (5%). Upholstery represented nearly 50% of
total sales in 2004, and was impacted in 2004 as two key
suppliers experienced disruptions due to system imple-
mentations. Textiles (primarily comprised of window
treatments), introduced in the fourth quarter of 2003,
increased over 200% for the year. Accessory sales bene-
fited from new direct marketing channels implemented or
expanded during 2004, as well as from an improved pro-
cess for merchandise replenishment, speeding the flow of
product into the consumer’s hands. Overall, same store
sales increased 10.7% over 2003, while sales per square
foot increased from $286 in 2003 to $325 per foot in
2004. The Company opened four new retail stores during
2004, while closing two.

Manufacturing segment net shipments decreased slightly
in 2004 versus 2003, primarily as a result of disruptions in
order processing, scheduling, and production following
the ERP go-lii)é during the fourth quarter of 2004.
incoming orders were about 2% higher than 2003 on
both a piece and dollar basis. Backlog, or unshipped
orders, increased substantially in the last two months of
the fiscal year as a result of the post ERP implementation
issues, ending the year at $17.7 million or 47% higher than
at the end of fiscal 2003.
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Gross Profit

Gross profit increased in 2004 over 2003 as retail ship-
ments and margin improvements were offset primarily by
the costs of production inefficiencies in the manufacturing
segment, as well as some increases in certain costs. Gross
margin, or gross profit as a percentage of net shipments,
declined from 36.0% in 2003 to 35.1% in 2004, due to
the decline in gross profit in the manufacturing segment.

Retail segment gross profit improved by $10.6 million, pri-
marily as a result of increased shipmenits as described above.
Retail gross margin also improved, due to a combination of
higher margin categories accounting for a larger percent-
age of total sales, a price increase taken during 2003,
adding approximately 1% to gross profit, and improve-
ments in the inventory management process, reducing the
extent of markdowns needed to clear excess inventory.

Manufacturing segment gross profit and gross margin
declined substantially in 2004 from 2003 levels. Increases in
warkers compensation costs and the accelerated deprecia-
tion on certain computer software replaced in the ERP
implementation contributed somewhat to the decline, but
the primary cause was production inefficiencies during the
year due to disruptions caused by the ERP development,
implementation of lean manufacturing processes, problems
with fabric shortages, and the disruption in manufacturing
operations following the ERP go-live. While full year net
shipments were only slightly below 2003, for the fourth
quarter, net shipments were substantially below prior year
and forecasted amounts, resulting in both inefficient labor
usage and under-absorption of fixed overhead costs.




Selling and Administrative Expenses
Selling and administrative expenses increased by 5.4%
overall in 2004. Retail segment expenses accounted for
most of the increase. As a percentage of net shipments,
however, total selling and administrative expenses declined
slightly in 2004 '

Retail segment selling and administrative expenses
increased in all categories, driven by costs (such as com-
missions, credit card fees, and delivery costs) to sell and
distribute substantially higher net shipments. Costs to sup-
port new distribution channels, both catalogue and
e-commerce, are included in these totals. In addition, four
new stores opened during 2004, while only two were
closed; the new stores have higher operating expenses
than the old stores, being generally larger and carrying
current market rental rates. The retail segment also incurred
costs to relocate its distribution center in Atlanta, Georgia,
early in the year, also contributing to the increase in costs.

Manufacturing segment selling and administrative
expenses increased 3.8% in 2004 over 2003. Expenses-in
2003 included the benefit of a recovery of $729,000 relat-
ing to certain reserves established in connection with a
2001 retail customer bankruptcy. Increases in advertising
costs in 2004, Supporting the segment’s StudioRowe
Gallery program, were iargély offset by reduced interna-
tional expenses due to the shutdown of an Qvefseas office
late in 2003. -
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Operating Earnings

Operating earnings declined by $1.7 million, or 35%, in
2004 from 2003, as a result of manufacturing segment
operating inefficiencies, certain increases in costs such as
depreciation and workers compensation costs and retail
segment selling and distribution costs, offset by increased
retail segment gross profit on higher net shipments, as dis-
cussed above.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased from $3,723,000 in 2003 to
$2,611,000 in 2004. Reductions in outstanding balances
during 2003, primarily resulting from the sale of the
Mitchell Gold subsidiary, combined with savings from the
expiration in 2004 of a derivative contract related lto the
Company’s capital lease obligation, accounted for the
majority of the reduction. In addition, improved operating
results and ratios resulted in reductions in the spread over
base indices on most of the Company’s variable rate debt,
largely offsetting increases in the indices themselves.

Other income, net, increased $376,000 in 2004 over|2003,
primarily due to rental income from additional short-term
rentals associated with an investment property.

Earnings from continuing operations before taxes increased
from $627,000 in 2003 to $816,000 in 2004, reflecting
the factors discussed above.

The effective tax rate in 2003 was higher than typiLl as
the Company reserved for certain state tax benefits a}ssoci-
ated with operating losses at the retail segment, The
impact in 2004 of continuing to reserve for state tax bene-
fits was significantly less as a result of the reduction in
losses in this segment.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTHNG POLICIES

The Company's consolidated financial statements have
beenA‘prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Certain
estimates and assumptions have been made that affect
the amounts and disclosures reported in the consolidated
financial statements and the related accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from these estimates and
assumpfions. Management uses its best judgment in valu-
ing these estimates and “may solicit external advice.
Estimates are based on current facts and circumstances,
prior experience and other assumptions believed to be rea-
sonable. Critical accounting policies that may ‘affect the
consohdated financial statements include self-insurance
reserves, Iong -lived asset valuations and. rmparrments bad
debt reserves, rnventory reserves and gooder

Seif-ﬂnswance Rese/rves

The Company is self-insured for substantlal portrons of its
health - care and workers compensation insurance pro-
grams. Reserves are established for such costs based on,
among other factors, reported claims to date, prior hjstory,
and actuarial projections of claims. incurred but not
reported and future medical cost increases likely to affect
the total cost to settle claims. If actual results in any of

these areas change from prior periods,” adjustments to

recorded Teserves may be required.

lLong-Mved AsseirVaﬂuaﬁrom and //njpar'ﬂnems ,
The Company monitor's' the economic health of its facilities
and op_erations and makes determinations, using cash flow
analyses, of the Vfair'val‘ue of its assets, both tangible and
intangible. When-cash flow analysis ind_icates‘that the fair
value of an asset is less than its book value, and such short-
fall.is not believed to be temporary in_nature, then an
adjustment to reduce the asset to its fair value is made. As
conditions change, additional adjustments of fair value
may be.required.
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Bad Debt Reserves :

The Company maintains reserves for receivables from retail
furniture businesses that become unable to pay their bal-
ances due. Management monitors payment status and
periodically performs credit evaluations of these customers
in determining the appropriate level of reserves. Factors
that affect these conditions can change rapidly, and adjust-
ments to the required level of reserves may be required as
such changes occur.

Inventory Reserves

The Company maintains its inventories at the lower of cost
or market value. Cost.is determined on a last-in, first-out
({LIFO) 'bas'is for inventory held at retail facilities, and on a
first-in, first-out (FIFQ) basis for inventory held at its manu-
facturing facilities. When™ conditions warrant (usually
highlighted by slow-moving produet, declining vendor
prices on'incoming product or a change in merchandising),
reserves are established to reduce the value of inventory to
net realizable values. As conditions warrant, additional
adjustments may be required. '

Goodwill :

In accordance with "SFAS 142, "Goodwill. and Other
Intangible Assets,” goodwill and other intangible assets
are to be evaluated for impairment at the reporting unit
level on an annual basis and.between annual tests when-
ever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of a reporting unit may exceed its fair value. The
Company -conducts its required annual impairment test
during the second quarter of each fiscal year, and as of
November 2005, repeated the impairment test in light of
the Company's operating performance issues. The impair-
ment test uses a discounted cash flow and projected
profitability model to estimate the fair value of the report-
ing unit. This mode! requires the use of }ong—term planning
forecasts. and assumptions. regarding spec’ific economic
conditions that are outside the'control of the Company.
Based upon .the results of testing, there was no impair-
ment of goodwill during or as of the end of 2005.




LIQUIDITY AND SOURCE OF CAPITAL

Cash from Operations

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities was
$(11,761,000), $10, Zt7 000 and $11,611,000 in 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. Fluctuatrons in net cash pro-
vided by operating activities are prlmarlly the result of
changes in operating income and changes in workrng cap-
ital accounts. Substantial tchanges from 2004 to 2005
included decreases in accounts're‘ceivable, as shipments
decreased following the ERP implementation: in late 2004;
an increase in inventories to improve in-stock fabric posi-
tion in manufactunng as well as rncreases attributable to
higher manufacturrng work-rn process rnventory and eight
net new retail stores during 2005. Storehouse also Treceived
$3.5 million of rent incentives from landlords in 2005,
compared to $2. 5 million recelved dunng 2004, Slgnlfrcant
changes from 2003 to 2004 included a decrease in
accounts recervable Iate in 2004 due to reduced shipments
resultrng from post—rmplementatron issues with the ERP;
an increase in inventories, largely offset by an increase in
accounts payable, also largely relating to the ERP imple-
mentati,on'; an increase in rent incentives received from
landlords, relating to new store openings at Storehouse;
and an increase in prepaids and other balances largely
due to a change in the timing of insurance premrum pay-
ments. in 2004. Improving cash flow from operatlons is
highly. dependent on order'rates inventory reduction and
the Company s operatlng performance To the extent the
Company is unable to meet its cash requrrements through
cash flows from operatrons it expects to utilize additional
borrowrngs available under its revolvrng line of credrt
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Cash from Investing Activities
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities was
$6,237,000, $(5,994,000) and $18,874,000 in 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively, primarily reflecting proceeds from
the sales of investment real estate properties in 2005 and
proceeds, less certain payments, related to the sald of the
Mitchell Gold subsrdrary in 2003. Capltalexpendltures in
2005 largely related to new stores at Storehouse and
included $3.5 mrlllon funded by landlord incentives, while
2004 caprtal expendrtures were a combination of mvest-
ments in new stores (including $2. 5 million received from
Iandlords) a relocatron of a distribution cénter and the ERP
system and 2003 caprtal expendrtures were marnly attrrb-
utable to routrne information systems malntenance and
upgrade projects ‘store remodehng actrvrtres and new
stores at Storehouse : '

Capital expenditures in 2006 are likély t6 be lower|than in
2005 as the pace of new store openrngs is expected to
slow at Storehouse in 2006. Spendlng related to the relo-
cation of the Storehouse corporate offices and to certarn
planned |mprovements for the distribution center opera-
tions wrll partially offset the reduced spending on new
stores. Under the terms of its recently restructured Iong-
term debt, the Companys capital expendrtures during
2006 may not exceed $7.9 mrlhon , '
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Cash from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities was
$972,000, $(2,371,000) and $(27,051,000) in 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively. In 2005, the Company drew upon
its revolving bank loan to fund operating losses, capital
expenditures, and inventory purchases, while the repay-
ments of long-term debt in 2005 include both scheduled
payments and the pay-off of the mortgage loans securing
the investment properties sold during 2005 with proceeds
from the sales of such properties. In 2004, draws, net of
repayments, on the revolving loan, reflected more normal
business activities, while the payments on long-term debt
included a payment in conjunction with the extension of
the lease for the Elliston facility in December 2003, in addi-
tion to scheduled debt payments. In 2003, the Company
used proceeds from the sale of Mitchell Gold to pay down
$22.1 million of debt.

As of November 27, 2005, the Company’s cash and cash
equivalents were $1.0 million, and the Company had
$287,000 available for additional borrowings under its
revolving bank loan, under which the Company was in
default for failing to satisfy certain operating covenants.
On January 6, 2006, the Company re-financed its existing
bank debt, paying off the entire balance of its capital lease,
term loan and revolving bank loan (which totaled
$34.2 million as of November 27, 2005), and replacing
them with a new secured revolving credit facility of up to
$50.0 million {(current maximum of $45.0 million) and a
$7.0 million Tranche B loan, both with three year terms
and no required principal payments prior to maturity
absent an event of default giving the lenders the right to
accelerate the debt. On the closing date, the Company
drew down the entire $7.0 million available under the
Tranche B loan and approximately $27.0 million available
under the revolving line of credit to pay off the existing
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debt and to pay fees associated with the refinancing trans-
action. The credit agreement governing the new revolving
credit facility and Tranche B loan was amended effective
January 27, 2006 to eliminate a requirement that the
Company raise additional equity and to increase the bor-
rowing base, or the collateral against which the Company
may borrow on the revolving credit facility, by $3.0 million.
In connection with the amendment, Gerald M. Birnbach,
Chairman of the Board and President of the Company, and
Sidney J. Silver, a director of the Company, provided lim-
ited guaranties of up to $1.5 million each ($3.0 million in
the aggregate), secured by letters of credit with a third
party financial institution in favor of the lenders. These
guaranties will remain in place until the satisfaction of all
of the Company’s obligations under the credit agreement
and termination of the facility, or the Company'’s raising
additional equity generating net proceeds of at least
$9.5 million and securing a commitment to raise additional
equity generating net proceeds of at least $2.0 million, in
each case on terms and conditions reasonably satisfactory
to the lender. The credit agreement provides that if addi-
tional equity in this amount is raised and the additional
commitment is secured, the maximum amount of the
revolving credit facility will increase from $45.0 million to
$50.0 million. See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements. As of the amendment date, the Company’s
bofrowing availability under the revolving credit facility
was $14.4 million.

The Company is pursuing additional debt or equity financ
ing alternatives that would provide the Company with a
significant increase in liquidity and capital to permit addi-
tional growth in Storehouse and fund capital expenditures
and working capital needs. There is no assurance that such
additional financings will be available on terms acceptable
to the Company.




Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our significant contractual obligations as of November 27, 2005:
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Payments by Period
Less Than 1-3 3-5 After
1 Year Years Years S Years Total

(in thousands) )

Contractual Obligations:

Operating leases $18,481 $29,522 $22,043 $28,408 $ 98,454
Capital lease » 10,139 - — — 10,139
Contractual maturities of long-term debt 24,044 — — — 24,044
Other long-term liabilities reflected on the balance sheet 137 231 225 190 783
Total contractual cash obligations $52,801  $29,753 $22,268 $28,598 $133,420
As of January 6, 2006, following the restructuring of the  Interest Rate Risk and

Company’s debt, the Company’s obligations on the capital
lease were eliminated, and total contractual maturities of
long-term debt increased to $33.8 million and became
due in January 2008.

The Company is not a party to any long-term supply con-
tracts with respect to lumber, fabric or other raw materials
used in production, nor does the Company enter into
long-term purchase commitments with vendors utilized in
the ordinary course of business.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
Because the Company’s obligations under its long-term
debt bear interest at variable rates, the Company is sensi-
tive to changes in prevailing interest rates. Based upon the
balances outstanding as of November 27, 2005, an increase
of 100 basis points in market interest rates would increase
quarterly interest expense by approximately $85,000.

The Company closed out its existing interest rate swap
contract in December 2005 in anticipation of re-financing
the underlying capital lease obligation. See Notes 5 .and 9
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company is exposed to market risk from cha nges in
the value of foreign currencies because it imports a sub-
stantial portion of retail inventory, and some of|its raw
materials, from foreign sources. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” below.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

When used in this annual report and in filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, in press releases or
other public shareholder communications, or in oral state-
ments made with the approval of an authorized executive
officer, the words or phrases “believe,” “will likely result,”
“are expected to,” “will continue,” “is anticipated,” “esti-
mate,” “project,” “plans,” or sirhilarexpressions, as well as
the use of future dates, are intended to identify “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.. You are cautioned
not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking state-
ments, which speak only as of the date made. These
statements may relate to our future financial peffofmance,
strategic plans or objectives, revenues or eam‘ings projec
tions, or other financial items. By their nature, these
statements are subject to numerous uncertainties- that
could cause actual results to differ materiélly from those
anticipated in the statements, Important factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from the results
anticipated or projécted include, but are not limited to, the
following: the possibility that the costs of the Company's
restructuring efforts described in this report will be greater
than anticipate'd and that the Company will not realize its
anticipated cost savings; the possibility that the Company
will be unable to obtain additional debt or equity financing
on terms acceptable to it within the time frames it desires;
changes from anticipated levels of sales, whether due 10
future national or regional economic and competitive con-
ditions, customer acceptance of existing and newlprodUcts,
or otherwise; pending or future litigation; pricing pressures

"ou
oo

"won

due to excess capacity; raw material cost increases; trans-
portation cost increases; the inability of a major customer
to meet its obligations; loss of significant cus_tbmers in
connection with a merger, acquisition, redisposition, bank-
ruptcy or otherwise; actions of current or new conﬁpetitors;
increased advertising costs associated with promotional
efforts; change of tax rates; change of interest ‘rates;‘fUture
business decisions and other uncertainties, all of which are
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difficult to predict and many of which are beyond the con-
trol of the Company. The Company does not undertake
any obligation to update any forward-looking statement
to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date
on which the forward-looking statement is made.

Additional risks include:

* The furniture industry is highly competitive at both
the mandfacturing and the retail levels; loss of mar-
ket share could adversely impact sales, earn/'ngs and
cash flow. '

Our manufacturing and retailing subsidiaries face sig-
nificant comp‘etition from numerous competitors, many
of which are larger and better capitalized. Qur subsid-
iaries may be at a competitive disadvantage as a result.
If our subsidiaries lose market share to'co'mpetitors, our
financial performance could be advérsely affected.

*  We have had difficulties, and may continue to experi-
ence difficulties, with the implementation of our
Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) software and
related manufacturing process changes.

Our manufacturing operations i'mpleménté‘d a new
ERP ‘system in late 2004 that includes accounting,
order processing, materials purchasing and inventory
management, human resources and- payroll manage-
ment and certain other functions. This was a complex,
m‘ulti‘-step' implementation. Various parts'of‘the Sys-
tem have not performed as planned, which has created
problems in entering and processing customer orders,
procUring and managing inventory, s.che‘dul‘ing orders
for production, and shipping and invoicing finished
product to customers. In addition, several chang'es in
production processes were made concurrently with
the system changes. Individually and in combination,
these changes have resulted in significant downtime
in the plant, inefficient production, delays in filling
orders, and shortfalls in operating results.




Our production management personnel assisted by
experts provided by the software vendor, have been
intensely focused on identifying the specn‘tc problems
‘ and solutions to them. At this point in time, such prob-
lems have. b‘een.re‘solved to the extent that we are able
to utilize the "s_ystem to schedule production and order
materials. 'Whilé we expect to make corrections.and
revisions to the system in 2006 to better utilize its

- . capabilities, problems may continue to arise and there

can be no assurance that these problems, if they occur,
would not have an adverse effect on operations and/
or profitability. '

While we have hired a consultant to help us /mprove
our manufactur/ng operat/ons and return to prof/tab//
/ty, no assurance can be given that we will be successfu/
in these efforts.

In November 2005, the Company engaged CMAG to
review the Company’'s operations and. help the
Company return to profitability. Webegah implement-
ing some of . their recommendatioris during January
2006 and a number of other initiatives are currently
under  consideration. While these initiatives are
intended to improve operations and ultimately reduce
costs and return the Company to profitability, no
assurance can be given that these initiatives will be
successful and such changes and their associated costs
may have an adverse effect, particularly in the short-
term, on the Cdmpany’s business, results of operations
and cash flows. '

We are current/y seek/ng to raise addmonal debt or
equity, which could be dilutive to the interests of exist-
ing stockholders.

We are currently seeking to raise addition‘alv debt or
equity, though no assurance can be given that we will
be successful in our efforts to do so. The raising of
additional equity capital, whether through common

« rate than in recent years.
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stock, preferred stock or another security convertible
to,common stock, would be dilutive to the interests of
existing shareholders, and the holders of any such
additional equity securities could have rights,| prefer-
ence’s and privileges that are superior to the holders of
our common stock.

Our fetai/ operations may not become profitable.

Our retail operations are currently unprofitable, and
there ‘can be no ‘assurance that profitability| will be
achieved. )

Our retail operations are opening stores at g higher

_Storeh'b‘use opened ten new stores.in 2005 and antici-

pates opening six additional stores during 2006. There
are numerous risks inherent in new store develop-
ment which could result in unprofitable locations. Risk
exp'osure areas include site selection, contractyal com-
mitment to rent expense, and successful execution of

. store selling and operations activities. There can be no

assurance that these new stores will achieve adequate
levels of _shipments or profitability. '

The Company importS a substantial portion of| its retail

merchandise, and some- of its raw materials, from for-
eign sources. Changes in exchange rates could impact
the price the Company pays for these goods, resulting

in potentially higher retail prices and/or lower gross

profit on these goods.

Nearly'h-alf of the Company’s 2005 purchases| of retail
merchandise originated overseas, and, the Company
also purchased some raw materials, particularly wood

‘components, fabric, and leather chairs for| re-sale,

from overseas sources. Most of these purchases were
denominated in U.S. dollars. As exchange' rates
between the U.S. dollar and certain other clrrencies
become unfavorable, the likelihood of price increases
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from our foreign vendors increases. Such price

increases, if they occur, could have one or more of the

following impacts:

e We could be forced to raise retail prices so high
that we are unable to sell the products at current
unit volumes;

e If we are unable to raise retail prices commensu-
rately with the cost increases, gross profit could
be negatively impacted; or

e We may be forced to find alternative sources of
comparable product, which may be more expen-
sive than the current products, of lower quality, or
the vendors may be unable to meet our require-
ments for quantities, delivery schedules or other
key terms.

Similar impacts could be experienced in our manufac

turing segment.

We may not be able to pay off or refinance our debt
obligations that mature in fiscal 20089.

The Company's new long-term debt obligations
mature in 2009. At that time, the Company will be
required to pay off or refinance these obligations.
There can be no assurance that the Company will have
sufficient cash to satisfy these obligations or that the
Company will be successful in obtaining new financ
ing, or that, if obtained, the financing would be on
favorable terms and conditions.

The terms of our revolving credit facility and Tranche B
loan contain various financial and other covenants. If
we do not adhere to these covenants and our lender
does not agree to amend such covenants or waive
such a default, the lender will have the right to accel-
erate the maturity of the debt which could have a
material adverse affect on our results of operations
and liquidity.

Qur bad debts experience may differ materially from
our estimates.

Substantially all of the Company’s trade accounts
receivable are from retail furniture businesses.
Management monitors payment status and periodi-
cally performs credit evaluations of these customers.
However, changes in creditworthiness can occur rap-
idly and unanticipated losses from trade accounts
receivable could occur in excess of the outstanding
allowance for losses. Therefore, there can be no assur-
ance that total losses from uncollectible accounts will
not exceed the allowance.

Our revenue could be adversely affected by low-cost
imported merchandise.

In certain merchandise categories, there has been a
rapid expansion of imported home furnishings at
lower manufacturing costs, resulting in lower retail
selling prices. This trend has reached the upholstery
segment of the home furnishings market, reéulting in
our manufacturing operations facing low-cost for-
eign competition. This in turn could require us to
reduce our selling prices or could diminish demand
for our products, '

Our revenue could be adversely affected by a disrup-
tion in our supply chain.

We are an importer of merchandise for our retail opera-
tions and components: for our manufacturing opera-
tions. Disruptions to our supply chain could result in
late arrival or Unavailability of components or finished
goods' for resale, causing manufacturing delays or
negatively affecting retail sales due to increased out-
of-stock merchandise.




Management’s Responsibility
for Financial Statements

The management of The Rowe Companies is re_spon‘sible

for the accuracy and consistency of all the information -

contained in the annual report, including all accompany-
ing consolidated financial statements. The statements
have been prepared to conform with accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States of America
and include amounts based on management s estimates
and Judgments :

The Rowe Companies maintains a system of internal
accounting controls, desrgned to prowde reasonable assur-
ance that financial records are accurate, Company assets
are safeguarded, and financial statements present farrly
the consolidated financial posmon of the Company

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, composed
solely of outside directors; reviews the scope of audits
and the findings of the independent registered public
accounting firm. The auditors meet regularly with the
Audit Commlttee to dlSCUSS audlt and financial issues.

BDO Seidman, LLP, the Company's independent registered
public accounting firm, has audited the financial state-
ments prepared by management. ‘Their opinion on the
financial statements is presented as follows. -

Gerald M. Brrnbach
Chairman of the Board
and President

- Garry W. Angle
Vice President-Treasurer
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm
Board of Directors and Stockholders

The Rowe Companies
McLean, Virginia

‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets of The Rowe Companies and subsidiaries as of

“ November 27, 2005 and November 28, 2004, and the

related consolidated statements of operations and com-
prehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows
for each of 'the three years in the period lended
November 27, 2005. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company‘s management. Our respon-
sibility is' to' express “an. opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. |

We conducted our audits in accordance with the stan-
dards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurancel about

whether the financial statements are free of material mis-

statement. The Company is not required to have, nor were
we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control
over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration
of intefnal ‘control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the cir-

- cumstances, but not for-the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we éxpress
no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
surestin the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principle_s used and significant estimates made by man-
agement, as well as- evaluating the overall fipancial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits pro-
vide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In 'ou‘r- opinion, "the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Rowe Companies and subsidiaries
at November 27, 2005 and November 28, 2004, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended November 27, 2005, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

High Point, North Carolina
January 19, 2006, except for note 5
which is as of January 27, 2006

BDO SEIDMAN, LLP
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

11/28/04
(in thousands, except share amounts)
ASSETS (Notes 1, 2 and 5)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,560
Restricted cash collateralizing letters of credit 3,564
Accounts receivable (net of allowances for losses of $721 in 2005 and $8OO in 2004) 16,522
Inventories (Note 3) : 37,781
Refundable federal income taxes —
Deferred income taxes (Note 11) 1,931
Prepaid expenses and other 5,500
Total current assets 70,858
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 4) 43,846
OTH ER ASSETS »
Cash value of life insurance, net of loans of $2,427 in 2005 and $2,427 in 2004 (Note 6) 1,494
Investment property (net of accumulated depreciation '
of $4,014 in 2005 and $5,214 in 2004) (Note 8) 766
Investment property held for sale (net of accumulated depreciation of $2 507) (Note 2) 7,248
Goodwill 13,182
Deferred income taxes.(Note 11) —
Miscellaneous 1,727
Total other assets 24,417
$139,121
LIABILITIES (Notes 1 and 2)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 5) $ - $ 1,867
Accounts payable 16,193 16,379
Accrued expenses:
Compensation B W <1 —" 4,510
Income taxes 1,071 1,064
Other 4,268
Customer deposits 14,296
Deferred compensation—current portion (Note 6) 209
Total current liabilities 42,593
LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 5) 24,077
LONG-TERM DEBT ASSOCIATED WITH INVESTMENT PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE (Note 2) 8,968
DEFERRED RENT 7,581
DEFERRED COMPENSATION AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Note 6) 1,470
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES (Note. 11) 1,752
Total liabilities 86,441
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 2,56,7 8 and 9)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Note 10) e
COMMON STOCK, par value $1 per share, 50,000,000 authorlzed shares 16,726 16,675
CAPITAL IN EXCESS OF PAR VALUE 23,285 23,206
RETAINED EARNINGS ‘ 29,474 34,779
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Note 9) 9
LESS TREASURY STOCK (21,989)
Total stockholders' equity 52,680
$139,121

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended
11727105 11/28/04 11/30/03
(52 weeks) | (52 weeks) (52 weeks)
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Net shipments (Notes 2 & 12) "$299,39_1 $295,203 $2178,373
Cost of shipments - 205,447 191,644 178,248
Gross profit 93,944 103,559 100,125
Selling and administrative expenses 109,134 100,_376 85,004
Retail restructuring and other charges (Note 2) - — 225
Operating income (loss) - (15,190 3,183 4,896
Interest expense {2,895) 2,611) (3,723)
Other income, net (Note 8) 1,007 738 362
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before taxes (17,078) 1,310 1,535
Tax expense (benefit) (Note 11) (7,281) 494 908
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations (9,797) 816 627
Discontinued operations (Note 2):
Loss on contingencies associated with operations
discontinued in-prior years, net of tax benefit of $65 —_ {105) —
Earnings from discontinued real estate operations,
net of tax expense of $43, $112 and $25, respectively 69 179 41
Earnings from discontinued operations of Mitchell Gold,
net of tax expense of $664 — — 1,084
Gains on disposals of discontinued operations, net of tax
expense (benefit) of $2,769 and $(1,473), respectively 4,423 — 462
Net earnings (loss) =y (5,305) § 890 § 2,214
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: : W
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives (Notes 1 and 9) 98 (133) (194)
Payments transferred to expense 28 708 741
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (5,179)| $ 1,465 $ p,761
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations per common share (Note 1) | -§  (0.74)/ §$ 006 $ |0.05
Net earnings (loss) per common share (Note 1) = 040)| § 0.07 $ 10.17
Weighted average common shares 13,288 13,198 13,167
Net earnings {loss) from continuing operations
per common share assuming dilution (Note 1) $ (0749 $ 006 $ 10.05
Net earnings (loss) per common share assuming dilution (Note 1) $ ©40! $ 007 $ W 0.17
Weighted average common shares and equivalents 13,288 13,546 1;,205

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’” Equity

Year Ended Novémber 27, 2005, November 28 2004 and November 30, 2003

Commqn Stock .

Treasury Stock

o Capital in : IR ~ Accumuliated
. Shares $1 Par Excessof  Retained  * Number Comprehensive
o Issued . Value Par Value.  Earhings “of Shares Cost  Income (Loss)
{in thousands, except share and per share amounts) : . ] _ v :
Balance at December 1,2002 - 16,584,907 $16,585 $23,083 $31,675 3,419,537 $21,956 $(1,113)
Acquisition of treasury stock ' ' 1,271 2
Exercise of stock options’ 2,500 -2 1
Net change during the year
related to cash flow hedge 547
Net earnings for the year
ended November 30, 2003 : : 2,214 '
Balance at November 30, 2003 16,587,407 16,587 23,084 33,889 3,420,808 21,958 (566)
Acquisition of treasury stock . 6,024 31
Exercise of stock options - 87,246 88 122
Net change during the year '
related to cash flow hedge 575
Net earnings for the year ,
ended November 28, 2004 o L 890
Balance at November 28, 2004 16,674,653 16,675 23,206 - 34,779 3,426,832 21,989 9
Acquisition of treasury stock ' ‘ ' “ 7,185 32
Exercise of stock options 51,581 51 79
Net change during the year '
related to cash flow hedge 126
Net loss for the year ended
November 27, 2005 , ‘ - (5,305)
Balance at November 27, 2005 16,726,234 $16,726 $23,285 $29,474 3,434,017 $22,021 $ 135

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended
11/28/04 11/30/03
(52 weeks) (52, weeks)
(in thousands) o
Increase (Decrease) In Cash
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 298,887 $ 300,659
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (288,268) (287,266)
Income taxes received (paid), net (1,418) 1,352
Interest paid (3,343) (5,225)
Interest received 102 225
Rent incentives received-from Iandlords 2,543 924
Other receipts—net 1,714 942
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in) operating activities 10,217 11,611
Cash flows from investing-activities:
Payments received on notes receivable 100 100
Increase in cash surrender Val'uev (131) {(121)
Proceeds from life insurance policies 370 —
Proceeds from sales of assets, net of expenses. — 39,573
Capital expendltures : (6,333) (4,919)
Payments under earn-out and related obllgatlons (Note 2) — (15,759)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,994) 18,874
Cash flows from financing activities:
Restricted cash released from (deposited to) collatera! for letters of credit 470 (96)
Draws under revdlving loans 8,798 12,570
Repayments under revolving loans (8,272) (20,751)
Payments to reduce long-term debt ' (3,240) (18,759)
Payments to reduce loans on cash surrender value (306) (16)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 210 3
Purchase of treasury stock (31) (2)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (2,371) (27,051)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,852 3,434
Cash at beginning of year 3,708 274
Cash at end of year § 5560 $| 3,708
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Net Earnings to Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities

Year Ended
11/28/04 11/30/03
(52 weeks) (52 weeks)
(in thousands)
Net earnings (loss) $ 890 $ 2,214
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings {loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities, net of disposition of business:
Pre-tax loss on disposition of Mitchell Gold — 1,01
Depreciation and amortization 7,079 8,245
Provision for deferred compensation ; 335 170
Payments made for deferred compensation L (242) (306) (241)
Deferred income taxes . ' = {2,997) (880) 406
Provision for losses on accounts receivable ’ 62) 107 376
Pre-tax loss (gain) on disposition of assets ; 40 55 —
Change in operating assets and liabilities net of effects of disposition of business:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 2,900 (1,627)
Decrease (increase) in inventories (5,394) (1,644)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other (2,789) 272
Decrease (increase) in other miscellaneous assets (420) 1,051
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 4,635 (1,238)
Increase (decrease) in income taxes payable 3 1,070
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 1,018 (1,875)
Increase (decrease) in deferred rent 2,200 344
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 784 3,077
" Total adjustments 9,327 9,397
Net cash provided by (used in) opérating activities $10,217 $11,611

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of Business—The Rowe Companies (the
"Company”) operates two subsidiaries in the home fur-
nishings industry: Rowe Furniture, inc. (“Rowe"” or the
“wholesale home furnishings segment”), a major manu-
facturer of quality upholstered furniture serving the
middle and upper middle market primarily throughout
the United States, through home furnishings retailers; and
Storehouse, Inc. (“Storehouse” or the “retail home fur-
nishings segment”), a multi-channel, lifestyle home
furnishings business including 69 retail home furnishings
stores. Storehouse makes good design accessible by sell-
ing an edited assortment of casual, contemporary home
furnishings through its stores located in the Southeast,
Southwest and Mid-Atlantic markets, its catalog and over
the Internet. |

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. All material intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated.

Revenue Recognition—Rowe recognizes sales when prod-
ucts are shipped and invoiced to customers. Storehouse
recognizes sales when the goods are delivered to the cus-
tomer or services have been rendered. Customer deposits
represent cash received for items not currently in inventory
and items on hand but not yet delivered to the customer.
Selling and administrative expenses include $7,055,000,
$5,788,000 and $5,150,000 of retail delivery expenses in
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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Credit Risk—Accounts receivable are customer obligations
due under normal trade terms. Rowe sells its products to
distributors and retailers in the residential home furnish-
ings industry, including traditional furniture retailers and
specialty home furnishings stores. As of November 27,
2005, there was no concentration of credit risk, either indi-
vidually or in the aggregate. Management performs
continuing credit evaluations of its customers’ fjnancial
condition and although generally does not requirg collat-
eral, letters of credit may be required from customers in
certain circumstances. Senior management feviews
accounts receivable on a monthly basis to determine if any
receivables will potentially be uncollectible. Any accounts
receivable balances that are determined to be uncollect-
ible, along with a general reserve, are included)in the
overal| allowance for losses accounts. After all attempts to
collect a receivable have failed, the receivable is written off
against the allowance. Based on the information available,
management believes the allowance as of November 27,
2005, was adequate. However, actual write-offs might
exceed the recorded allowance.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect |certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,; actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Inventories—Inventories are valued at the lower of icost or
market. Rowe utilizes the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method
to compute cost, while Storehouse utilizes the last-in, first-
out (LIFO) method.
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Property, Equipment and Depreciation—Property and
equipment are stated at cost. For financial reporting pur-
poses, depreciatior, which includes amortization of assets
under capital leases, is computed over the estimated use-
ful lives of the assets using primarily the straight-line
method. Accelerated methods are used for income tax
purposes. Assets are depreciated for financial reporting
purposes based on estimated useful lives as follows: build-
ings and improvements (5 to 45 years); machinery and
equipment (3 to 10 years); and leasehold imbrovements
(terms of leases). '

Operating Leases—The Company leases retail stores, office
space and distribution facilities under operating leases.
Most lease agreements contain tenant improvement
allowances, rent holidays, rent escalation clauses and/or
contingent rent provisions. For purpbses of recognizing
incentives and minimum rental expenses on a straight-line
basis over the accounting terms of the leases, the Company
uses the date of initial possession to begin amortization,
which is generally when the Company enters the space
and begins to make improvements in preparation for
intended use. .

For tenant improvement allowances and rent holidays, the
Company records a deferred rent liability on the consoli-
dated balance sheets and amortizes the deferred'rent over
the accounting terms of the leases as reductions to rent
expense in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive income (loss). v

For scheduled rent escalation clauses during the lease
terms or for rental payments commencing at a date other
than the date of initial occupancy, the Company records
minimum rental expenses on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the leases in the consolidated statements of opera-
tions and comprehensive income (loss).
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Certain leases provide for contingent rents, which are
generally determined as a percentage of gross sales in
excess of specified levels. The Company records a contin-
gent rent liability in deferred rent on the consolidated
balance sheets and the corresp‘ond_ing rent expense when
specified levels have been achieved or when management
determines that achieving the specified levels during the
fiscal yéar is probable.

Long-Lived Assets—Long-lived assets, such as property
and equipment, are evaluated for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may not be recoverable through the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows from the use of
these assets. When any such impairment exists, the related
assets are written down to fair value. No impairment
charges were recorded during 2005 or 2004. During 2003,
the Company performed an evaluation of Storehouse’s
assets, including its store portfolio, and concluded that
certain store locations were not generating sufficient cash
flow to support their fixed depreciation charges. The
Company recorded a non-cash impairment charge of
apprbximately $1,042,000 to write-down the value of the
fixed assets at those locations. |

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—Financial instruments
of the Company include trade receivables, trade payables
and long-term debt agreements. The fair value of trade
receivables and trade payables approximates the carrying
amount because of the short maturity of these instru-
ments. Based upon the cufrent borrowing rates available
to the Company, estimated fair‘values of debt instruments
approximate their recorded carrying amounts. The
Company also held an interest rate swap contract. See
Note 9 for information bconce.ming the fair value of this
financial instrument, ' -




Goodwill—In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which was effec-
tive as of the beginning of fiscal 2003 for the Company.
SFAS No. 142 represents a change in accounting for good-
will. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill no longer be
amortized, and that goodwill be tested for impairment at
the reporting unit level by comparing the reporting unit’s
carrying value to its fair value as of the beginning of the
fiscal year. SFAS 142 also requires that, at least annually,
goodwill be retested for impairment. Using a discounted
cash flow model, management has determined that there
has been no impairment of the goodwill recorded in its
financial statements. Goodwill is included in the total
assets of the wholesale segment in the Company's seg-
ment reporting.

Advertising Costs—Costs incurred for advertising are
expensed as incurred. Charges to selling and admini-
strative expenses for advertising were $10,351,000,
$9,832,000 and $8,738,000 in 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Costs incurred under cooperative advertiéing
programs are recognized when the related revenues are
recognized. In accordance with the FASB's Emergihg
Issues Task Force Issue No. 01;9, the cooperative advertis-
ing costs are classified as a reduction of net shipments for
all periods presented. ‘

The Rowe Companies Annual Report 2005

Derivatives—The Company utilizes derivative financial
instruments to reduce interest rate risks. The Campany
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. Financial Accounting Standard No. 133,
”Accouhting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” which was amended in June 2000 by SEAS No.
138, established accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments and hedging activities. They require
that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or
liabilities in the balance sheet and measure those|instru-
ments at fair value. Changes in the fair value of those
instruments will be reported in earnings or other compre-
hensive income depending on the use of the derivative
and'whetheritqualifiesforhedge accounting. The account-
ing for gains and losses associated with changes in [the fair
value of the derivative and the effect on the consolidated
financial statements will depend on its hedge designation
and whether the hedge is highly effective in achieving off-
setting changes in the fair value of cash flows of the asset
or Iiability hedged. The Company’s derivative instruments
were considered “highly effective” under SFAS No. 133
and, as a result, changes in fair value of the agreements
were. recorded to accumulated other comprehensive
income ‘(loss) in stockholders’ equity. Hedge ineffective-
ness was not material during fiscal years 2005 and 2004.
See Note 9.

Income Taxes—Income taxes are calculated using|the lia-
bility method specified by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting For
Income Taxes.”

Stock Options—See Note 10.
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Comprehe'nsivelncome(Loss)—The Company has reported
the components of comprehensive income in the
_Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’  Equity.
Comprehensive income is defined as the change in quuity
of a business énterprise during a period from transactions
and other events and circumstances from non-owner
sources. It includes all changes in equity during a period
except those resuiting from investments by owners and
distributions to owners. For the Company, other compre-
hensive income (loss) consists of changes in the fair market
value of derivatives.

Earnings Per Share—The Company computes basic earn-
ings per share based upon the weighted averége shares
outstanding during the period. Outstanding stock options
which are dilutive are treated as common stock equivalents
for purposes of computing diluted earnings per share.

2004 2003

(in-thousands)

Net earnings (loss)
available to basic
and diluted shares

Weighted average
common shares

outstanding (Basic) 13,167
Effect of dilutive

stock options . 348 38
Weighted average commo :

shares and equivalents

outstanding (Diluted) 13,546 13,205
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As of November 27, 2005, November 28, 2004 and
November 30, 2003, there were 1,634,159, 837,631 and
1,415,937 outstanding options, respectively, whose exer-
cise price was equal to or greater than the average market
price of the Company's common stock for the twelve
months ended thereon, respectively. These options are
excluded from the computation of the effect of dilutive
stock options shown in the table above. In addition, for the
year ended November 27, 2005, 266,920 potentially dilu-
tive options were further excluded from the table above
because, as a result of the loss for the period then ended,
including these options would have been anti-dilutive to
the computation of net earnings (loss) per common share
assuming dilution.

Statement of Cash Flows—For purposes of the Statement
of Cash Flows, the Company considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Fiscal Year—The Company's accounting fiscal year end is
the Sunday of each year closest to November 30. Fiscal
years 2005, 2004 and 2003 each contained 52 weeks.
Fiscal year 2006 will contain 53 weeks.

Reclassifications—Certain prior year amounts have been
reclassified to conform to current year presentation. The
reclassifications have no effect on the results of operations
previously reported.




NOTE 2—ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS
AND RESTRUCTURING
On October 31, 1998, the Company acquired all of the

issued and outstanding common stock of Mitchell Gold, a

privately owned furniture manufacturing company located
in North Carolina. During April 2003, the Company sold
Mitchell Gold. At the time of the sale, Mitchell Gold's
financial statements included total assets of $47,116,000
and liabilities of $10,051,000, consisting of the following
major classes of assets (amounts in thousands):

Accounts receivable $ 6,065
Inventory "~ 6,488
Fixed assets 7,003
Goodwill 26,342
Other assets 1,218
Total assets $47,116
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 5,196
Long-term debt ‘ ' 4,855
Total liabilities $10,051
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Proceeds from the sale, net of liabilities assumed, were
approximately $39.6 million. The sale resulted inja gain,
after taxes, of $462,000 or $0.04 per share ($0.03 per
diluted share). The Company utilized the net proceeds to
reduce outstavnding debt by approximately $22.1 million,
pay expenses of the sale of approximately $4.0}million,
and settle obligations under the Iong'-term earn-out provi-
sions of the original purchase agreement for Mitchell Gold.
Interest allocated to Mitchell Gold was calculated based on
borrowings used to acquire and support Mitchell Gold's
activities at the - Company’s average -borrowing rate.
Included in earnings from discontinued operations in the
Company's ‘consolidated statements of operations were
the following amounts associated with Mitchell Gpld:

2003

(in thousands) '
Net shipments N - $20,226
Interest expense - : 8 415
Earnings before taxes $1,748
Net earnings per common share $ 0.08
Net earningé per common share

assuming dilution 5 0.08
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During fiscal 2004, the Company's Board of Directors
approved management’s plans to sell two investment real
estate properties, and in March 2005 the Company’s
Board of Directors approved management'’s plan to sell a
third real estate property. The first property, located in
Sylmar, California, was sold in December 2004. Proceeds
of $6.3 million were used to pay down debt and expenses
of the sale. The Company recoghized a gain, net of taxes,
of $2.7 million, or $0.20 per share, during the quarter
ended February 27, 2005. In July 2005, the Company
closed on the sale of the second property located in Jessup,
Maryland. Proceeds of $8.2 million were used to pay down
debt and expenses of the sale. The Company recognized a
gain of $635,000, or $0.05 per share. In August 2005, the
Company closed on the sale of the third property located
in Christiansburg, Virginia. Proceeds of $2 million were
used to reduce the outstanding balance of the capital lease
by $1.2 million and for general corporate purposes. The
Company recognized an after-tax gain of $1.1 million or
$0.08 per share on the sale of this property.

Income and expense items associated with these proper-
ties have been classified as discontinued operations, and
all prior periods have been restated to conform to the cur-
rent presentation. Included in earnings from discontinued
operations in the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations were the following amounts associated with
these investment properties:
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2005 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Other income, net . $466 | $1,023 4805
“Interest expense -$354 1 $ 732 $739
Earnings before taxes $112 | $ 291 §$ 66
Net earnings per common share [ <= | $ 0.01 § —
Net earnings per common share b=
assuming dilution $ w1 $ 001§ —

There were no investment properties held for sale as of
November 27, 2005. As of November 28, 2004, assets and
liabilities held for sale consisted of the following (amounts
in thousands):

Inves'tment' property, net of
accumulated amortization
Mortgage loans

$7,248
$8,968

The mortgage loans were secured by the investment prop-
erties located in California and Maryland. Rental income at
these properties totaled $644,000, $1,458,000 and
$1,636,000 in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

During February 2004, the Company recorded certain
adjustments relating to workers compensation insurance
reserves for policy years 1999 and 2000. These adjust-
ments included amounts associated with its discontinued
operations, totaling $170,000 on a pre-tax basis, or $0.01
per share. These charges have also been included in dis-
continued operations.




On August 1, 1999, the Company completed the acquisi-
tion of Storehouse, a privately owned, 43 store chain of
retail furniture stores headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia.
During 2002, the Company restructured its retail opera-
tions by combining the former Home Elements retail
subsidiary into Storehouse to operate under the Storehouse
name. During 2002, the Company reserved $2.6 million
for costs associated with the restructuring. Approximately
$2.1 million of this reserve was utilized during 2002, with
the remainder set aside to cover losses the Company
expected to incur after subleasing the office space used by
Home Elements for its corporate offices, as the Company
anticipated that its rent payments under the lease would
exceed the amounts it would receive under the terms of a
sublease. During 2003, the Company entered into a sub-
lease for this space, and increased the reserve by $225,000
to reflect the terms of the sublease. The following table
shows the changes in the balance of the restructuring
reserve relating to the former Home Elements corporate
office space: .
Beginning Ending
Reserve Paid  Reserve
Balance Revisions to Date Balance

(in thousands)

Year ended 11/27/05  $271 — 87 $184
Year ended 11/28/04 $335 — 64 $271
Year ended 11/30/03  $519 225 409  $335
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NOTE 3—INVENTORIES
Inventory components are as follows:

2005 2004
(in thousands) : '
Retail merchandise $25,768 | 921,103
Finished goods 2,610 2,376
Work-in-process 3,172 3,507
Raw materials 11,427 10,795
Total inventories $42,677 | $37,781

[ =——]

Retall merchandise is valued by Storehouse using the LIFO
method to determine cost. Had this inventory been valued
using FIFO, retail merchandise and total inventories would
have increased by $1,488,000 and $754,000 in 2005 and
2004 respectively, over the amounts shown above.

NOTE 4—PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following:

2004

.. 2005
(in thousands) x,
Land ‘4 405 3§ 405
Buildings and improvements . 32,633 32,578
Leasehold improvements 24,037 18,906
Machinery and equipment 44,204 44,035
Projects-in-process L 31 444
= 101,310 | 196,368
Less accumulated depreciation : (553315) (52,522)
Net property and equipment "4 45994 | § 43,846

Assets recorded under capital leases that are inc uded in
the above property and equipment are as follows

2005 2004

(in thousands)
Land $ 198 | § 198
Buildings and improvements 18,572 18,572
Machinery and equipment 6,230 6,230
- 25,000 25,000
Less accumulated depreciation (3,267) (2,454)
$21,733 | $22,546

37




'The Rowe Companies Annual Report 2005

NOTE 5—LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASES
Long-term debt and capital leases consisted of the follow-
ing at the dates indicated: '

November27 November 28,
R 2004

{in thousands) , o
Capital lease obligation $12,206
Revolving bank loan 11,238
Term loan 2,500

25,944
Less current maturities 1,867
Total long-term debt $24,077

On Jan‘uary 6, 2006, the Company corhpleted the restruc-
turing of its long-term debt and capital lease with a new
lender énd paid off the balances shown above, utilizing
the proceeds from the new financing. While the Company
was in default under such debt as of November 27, 2005,
giving the lenders .th'e right to accelerate the maturity of
the debt (which was not exercised), because of the refi-
nancing, such debt is reflected as “Long-Term Debt,”
rather than “Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt” in the
Company's consolidated balance sheet as of November 27,
2005. The new financing includes a senior secured $7.0
million Tranche B loan, maturing January 6, 2009, and a
three-year senior secured revolving credit facility of up to
$50.0 million (current maximum of $45.0 million), on
which the Company borrowed approximately $27.0 mil-
lion at closing. These new loans are secured by substantially
all the assets of the Company. Both the interest rate on the
revolving credit facility and the interest rate on the Tranche
B loan are variable, based on a margin over, at the
Company's election, either one-, two- or three-month
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LIBOR or the greater of the prime rate or the Federal Funds
rate plus 50 basis points. The margin is re-set quarterly
based on the Company’s available additional borrowings.
In addition, after June 30, 2006, the interest rate on the
revolving credit facility will also vary based on Company
financial performance. From the closing date through the
end of the first quarter of fiscal 2006, the interest rate on
the Tranche B loan is one-month LIBOR plus 5.50% and
the interest rate on the revolving credit facility is one-
month LIBOR plus 1.75%. As of January 6, 2006,
one-month LIBOR was approximately 4.42%.

The credit agreement governing the new revolving credit
facility and Tranche B loan contains various covenants,
including financial covenants limiting annual capital expen-
ditures and establishing reserves, and customary covenants
relating to financial reporting and notification, preserva-
tion of existence, maintenance of insurance, compliance
with laws, limitations on investments, indebtedness and
encumbrances and sales of assets, and restrictions on cash
dividends and repurchases of the Company’s stock. The
credit agreement was amended effective January 27, 2006
to eliminate a covenant that required the Company to raise
additional equity. This amendment also increased the bor-
rowing base, or the collateral against which the Company
may borrow on the revolving credit facility, by $3.0 million.

In connection with the amendment of the credit agree-
ment, Gerald M. Birnbach, the Company’s Chairman and
President, and Sidney J. Silver, a director of the Company,
each agreed to guaranty the obligations of the Company
and its subsidiaries under the credit agreement up to
$1.5 million each, or $3.0 million in the aggregate. Fach
guaranty is supported by a separate letter of credit in the




face amount of $1.5 million issued by a third party financial
institution in favor of the lenders under the credit agree-
ment. Each letter of credit provides for renewal every six
months unless the third pérty financial institution provides
notice of cancellation at least 30 days in advance of expira-
tion. The guaranties of Messrs. Birnbach and Silver will
remain in place until the satisfaction of all of the Company's
obligations under the credit agreement and termination of
the facility, or the Company’s raising additional eqdifcy gen-
erating net prbceeds of at least $9.5 million and securing a
commitment to raise additional equity generating net pro-
ceeds of at least $2.0 million, in each case on terms and
conditions reasonably satisfactory to the lender. The credit
agreement provides that if additional equity in this amount
is raised and the additional commitment is secured, the
maximum amount of the revolving credit facility will
increase from $45.0 million to $50.0 million.

In consideration of the guaranties provided by Messrs.
Birnbach and Silvér, the Company agreed to pay the fol-
lowing fees to each of them: $30,000 upon execution
and delivery of their agreement with the Company,
$30,000 upon the first renewal of the letter of credit and
$60,000 upon each subsequent renewal of the letter of
credit. In addition, should the letters of credit be drawn
upon, the Company must pay interest to Messrs. Birnbach
and Sil\}er on the amount drawn at 5% over the prime
rate charged by the third party financia! institution which
issued the letters of credit.

Minimum Debt Service Requirements

Following the restructuring of Company’s debt on January 6,
2006, debt service of approximately $34 million will be
due in fiscal 2009.
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NOTE 6—DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS
Effective December 1, 1986, as amended in 1991, the
Company established deferred compensation contracts for
certain officers of the Company. The contracts fixed a min-
imum level for retirement benefits to be paid to paricipants
based on age at retirement with the Company. The con-
tracts are not funded. Charges to ‘expense were $44,000
in 2005, $49,000.in 2004 and $53,000 in 2003.

The Companyalso has deferred compensation agréements
with key employees. Vesting is based upon age and years
of servicé, Life insurance contracts have been purchased
which may be used to fund these agreements. The charges
to expénse were $138,000 in 2005, $163,000 in 2 D04 and
$118,000 in 2003.

NOTE 7—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS o
The-Company maintains 401(k) and savings plans that
cover substantially all employees. Contributions to the
plans were $879,000 in 2005, $848,000 in 2004 and
$836,000 in 2003. '

NOTE 8—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Leases ”
The Company is obligated: under long-term real estate
leases for offices, warehouses, showrooms and retail
locations expiring at various dates through 2016 with
certain renewal options. Certain of the lease agreements
for store locations have, in addition to base rental, con-
tingent rentals b}as‘ed. on sales volume and payments
based on a pro-rata distribution of the expenses associ-
ated with common areas. Rental payments charged to
expense were $19,830,000 in 2005, $14,938,000 in
2004 and $13,977,000 in 2003.
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The Company is a lessor of its remaining investment
properties primarily under long-term operating leases.
The lease arrangements have initial terms of one to five
years and some contain provisions to increase the monthly
rentals at specific intervals. Rental income, net of com-
missions, was $333,000 in 2005, $489,000 in 2004, and
$322,000 in 2003 and is included in other income in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Income (Loss). '

Minimum lease commitments at November 27, 2005,
under long-term operating leases were as follows:

Lease Lease

Expense Income
{in thousands)
2006 $18,481 $52
2007 15,510 40
2008 14,012 7
2009 12,105 —
2010 9,938 —
Thereafter 28,408 =

$98,454 $;99_

In addition, the Company is obligated through a dedicated
contract carriage agreement for delivery services through
February 2008. Current monthly expense is $215,000 plus
a variable mileage charge.
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Health Insurance Plan

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain self-insurance
programs for that portion of health care costs not covered
by insurance. The Company is liable for claims from $75,000
up to $100,000 per person annually. Self-insurance costs
are accrued based upon the aggregate of the liability for
reported claims and an estimated liability for claims
incurred but not reported.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance Plan

The Company is responsible for workers compensation
claims up to $250,000 per incident. The Company main-
tains insurance for claims exceeding $250,000 and has
stop loss coverage starting at $4,200,000 in aggregate
for fiscal year 2006. The Company accrues its estimated
claims based upon actuarial estimates as determined by
its claim administrator.

Employment Agreements

The Company has employment agreements with certain
employees of the Company, which provide for salary con-
tinuation of two years in the event of termination of
employment without cause. In addition, the Company has
an agreement with an officer, which provides a minimum
annual salary of $792,000, adjusted for changes in the
consumer price index, through November 30, 2010.
Payments under this agreemeht were $939,924 in 2005,
$922,000 in 2004 and $888,000 in 2003.

Litigation

The Company has been named as a defendant in various
lawsuits arisi'ng in the ordinéry course of business. It is not
possible at the present time to estimate the ultimate out-
come of these actions; however, management believes
that the resulting liability, if any, will not be material based
on the Company’s previous experience with lawsuits of
these types. ' '




NOTE 9—INTEREST RATE HEDGING

In connection with the Company’s capital lease agreements
for the Elliston facility, the obligations under which were
paid off by the Company on January 6, 2006 in connection
with the restructuring of its bank debt, the Company was
required to maintain interest rate protection agreements;
In connection with the original Elliston lease agreement,
the Company had entered into two interest rate hedging
contracts. One contract, for $5.0 million notional principal
amount, expired in April 2003. The second contract, for
$20.0 million notional principal amount, expired in August
2004. The second contract effectively fixed interest on the
original 30 day LIBOR floating rate at 6.805% . In December
2003, in conjunction with the extension of the capital lease
term and modifications of other provisions, the Company
entered into an interest rate swap with a third party for a
notional principal amount of $9.0 million, declining by
$50,000 per month, through November 2008. Under the
terms of this swap, which, as noted below; the Company
sold in December 2005, while 30 day LIBOR was below
3.65%, the Company paid the counterparty the difference
in interest between 3.65% and actual LIBOR. If and when
30 day LIBOR exceeded 3.65%, then the counterparty paid
the Company the differenée. " |

The Company accounts for its interest rate agreements as
cash flow hedges whereby the fair value of the contracts
are reflected in other'liabilities (or other assets, as the case
may be) in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
with the offset, net of income taxes, recorded as accumu:
lated other comprehensive income (loss). The fair value of
the swap contract at November 27, 2005, as determined
by quoted market prices, was an asset of $135,000, net of
taxes of $83,000. This included a current asset of $45,000
and long-term asset of $90,000, both net of taxes, based
upon expected interest rates over the term of the agree-
ment. The Corhpariy sold the current swap contract for
$173,000 in December 2005.
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As of November 28, 2004, the fair value of the swap in
place at that time was an asset of $9,000, net of faxes of
$5,000. This net asset was composed of a long-term asset
of $48,000 and a current liability of $39,000, both net of
taxes, basedAupon expected interest rates over the term of
the agreement.

NOTE 10—STOCK OPTICN PLANS
The Company has two stock option plans as described
below. The Company applies APB Opinion 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related Interpretation
in accounting for the plans. Under APB Opinion 25,
because the exercise price of the Company’'s employee
stock options equals the market price of the underlying:
stock on the date of grant, no compensation cost is recog-
nized. Substa‘ntially all of the options granted durjng the
three-year period ended November 27, 2005 were fully
vested at the grant date.

Under the 1993 stock option plan, as amended, 3,264,93'7
shares of unissued common stock or treasury stogk were
available for grants. These options were granted at mar-
ket value on the date of grant, have been adjusted for
stock splits and dividends, and are generally exercisable
for a term of ten ye‘ars from the date of grant. Effective
February 1, 2003, no further options may be granted
under this plan.

Under the 2003 stock option plan, 1,300,000 shares of
unissued common stock or treasury stock have been made
available for grants. These options are generally exercis-
able for a term of ten years from the date of grant, These
options are granted at market value on the date ofigrant.
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SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended by SFAS 148, requires the Company to provide pro
forma information regarding net income and earnings per share as if compensation costs for the Company’s stock
option plans had been determined in accordance with the fair value based method prescribed in SFAS 123. The Company
uses the intrinsic value method to account for stock-based employee compensation. As the Company’s awards of stock
options carry an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant, no accounting cost is
reflected in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company estimated the fair value of each stock
option at the grant date by using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assump-
tions used for grants in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively; dividend vields of 0%; expected volatility of 69.6%, 67.1%,
and 54.5%; risk-free interest rates of 4.25%, 4.0% and 4.0%; and expected lives of 7.5 years, 4 years and 4 years. See
Note 15.

Had the Company utilized the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation, the
impact on earnings and earnings per share would have been as follows:

2005 2004 2003
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Net earnings (loss), as reported $(5,305)| - $ 890 $2,214
Earnings (loss) per share, basic, as reported $ (0.40) $0.07 $ 0.17

Earnings (loss) per share, diluted, as reported . $ (0.40) $0.07 $ 0.17

Stock-based employee compensation cost, net
of related taxes, included in net earnings as reported —

Stock-based employee compensation cost, net
of related taxes, that would have been included in net

earnings if the fair value based method had been applied $ 515

Pro forma net earnings (loss), including the impact

of applying the fair value based method $(5,820)
Pro forma earnings (loss) per share, basic $ (0.44)
Pro forma earnings (loss) per share, diluted $ (0.44)
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A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans, as of the balance sheet date and changes during the years

ending on those dates, is presented below:

November 27, 2005

November 28, 2004 November 30, 2003

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average - Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 1,758,872 $5.58 1,769,937 $5.86 1,845,202 $6.62
Granted 276,000 3.96 310,000 3.22 290,500 213
Exercised (51,581) 2.53 (87,246) 2.40 (2,500) 1.25
Forfeited (82,212) 5.90 (233,819) 5.76 (363,265) 6.78
Outstanding at end of year 1,901,079 $5.44 1,758,872 $5.58 1,769,937 $5.86
Exercisable at end of year 1,831,979 $5.28 1,595,430 $5.58 1,530,656 $6.12
Weighted average fair value of o
options granted during the year $2.82 $1.78 $1.14

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at November 27, 2005.

Options Qutstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Number Average Average Number Average

Range of QOutstanding at Remaining Exercise Exercisable Exercise
Exercise Prices November 27, 2005  Contractual Life Price November 27, 2005 Price
$1.25-% 2.15 266,920 ‘ 7 $1.98 266,920 51.98
3.00- 4.95 772,081 7 3.65 764,581 3.65
5.10- 6.93 311,279 2 6.56 311,279 6.56
7.39- 838 173,400 3 8.16 173,400 8.16
9.00- 10.28 377,399 3 9.36 315,799 9.18
1,901,079 $5.44 1,831,979 $5.28
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NOTE 11—TAXES ON INCOME

Provisions for income taxes in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations and Comprehensive income (Loss) consisted
of the following components:

2004 2003

(in thousands) - . ;

Current "R2195) | $(66) $746

Deferred (5,086) | 560 162
Total tax expense (benefit) o
on net earnings (loss) from g -

continuing operations $(7,281) | 3494 3908

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of tem-
porary differences between the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for income tax purposes. The source of
the temporary differences and their effects on deferred
taxes are as follows:

2005 | 2004

(in thousands) O

Deferred compensation $ 578 % 700
Receivables 407 416
Deferred rent 4,041 2,765
Investment property = g —
Restructuring 0. 103
Capital loss carryforward — 1,473

Federal and State net operating

loss carryforwards 1,379
Tax credits 24
Other 716
Gross deferred tax assets 7,576

Less valuation allowance (1,759 (1,379)
Net deferred tax asset 7,960 6,197
Property and equipment 4,145 3,206
Investment property — 1,809
Inventories 699
Cash flow hedge 5
Qther e 299
Gross deferred tax liability 4,862 6,018
Net deferred tax asset $3:0081 % 179
Included in balance sheet:
 Deferred income tax asset—current | $ 576 | $ 1,931

Deferred income tax

asset—non-current 2,528 (1,752)
Net deferred tax asset $3,0081% 179
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A valuation allowance has been provided for the state net
operating loss carryforwards for certain states in which
the retail operations have sustained losses that may not be
able to be utilized in the future. The net operating loss
carryforwards. are limited to use in varying amounts
through 2024. ‘

The folloWing summary reconciles taxes at the federal
statutory tax rate with the actual taxes:

2004 2003

(in thousands)
Income tax expense
(benefit), computed
at the statutory rate
State income taxes,
net of federal
income tax benefit
Life insurance transactions
Release of reserves
created in prior years
Benefits recognized on
amended prior year returns,
primarily tax credits
Other items, net
Total tax expense (benefit)
on net earnings (loss)
from continuing operations

- F 3 e $494  $908

NOTE 12—MAJOR CUSTOMER INFORMATION

Shipments to the Company's top three customers were
7% in each of 2005, 2004 and 2003, and the top ten
customers amounted to 13% in each of 2005, 2004 and

2003, all as a percent of net shipments for each respec
tive year.




NOTE 13—SEGMENT REPORTING
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The Company'’s operations are classified into two business ségments: wholesale and retail home furnishings. The whole-
sale home furnishings segment manufactures upholstered furniture. Upholstered furniture includes sofas, loveseats,
occasional chairs and sleep sofas, covered with fabric. The retail home furnishings segment sells home furnishings and
accessories to customers through Company-owned stores. These products consist of upholstered furniture (largely
obtained from the wholesale home furnishings segment), case goods and home accessories. The other category is com-
prised of additional subsidiaries reviewed by management including parent company expenses.

Wholesale Retail
Home Home Inter-
Furnishings Furnishings segment

Segment Segment Other Eliminations  Consolidated
(in thousands) o
2005 ‘
Net shipments $167,811 $151,797  § —  $(20,217)  $299,391
Operating income (l0ss) (5,947) (2,324) (6,641) (278) (15,190)
Interest expense (962) (754) (1,179) — 2,895)
Other income, net (2,091) (941) 4,039 — 1,007
Earnings (Iossj from continuing operations before taxes (8,998) 4,019 (3,783) (278) (17,078)
Depreciation and amortization 3,128 2,872 156 — 6,156
Capital expenditures 1,103 7,155 160 — 8,418
Total assets ' 99,454 54,287 38,554 (58,079) 134,216
2004
Net shipments , $174,170 $140,590 5 — $(19,557) $295,203
Operating income (loss) ‘ 8,642 716 6,277) 102 3,183
Interest expense (1,786) (648) (177) — 2,611)
Other income, net (2,805) (1,027) 4,570 — 738
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before taxes 4,051 (959) (1,884) 102 1,310
Depreciation and amortization 4,130 2,528 421 — 7,078
Capital expenditures 1,747 4,410 176 — 6,333
Total assets 114,983 38,370 46,238 (60,470) 139,121
2003 v
Net shipments $175,303 $122,968 $  — $(19,898)  $278,373
Operating income (loss) 16,695 (5,332) (6,589) 122 4,896
Interest expense (2,448) (1,219) (56) — (3,723)
Other income, net (3,054) (877) 4,293 — 362
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before taxes 11,193 (7,428) (2,352) 122 1,535
Depreciation and amortization 4,045 3,497 410 — 7,952
Capital expenditures 2412 2,210 214 — 4,836
Total assets 117,174 48,818 44,688 (78,830) 181,850

The consolidated amounts shown above for capital expenditures exclude amounts for the discontinued Mitchell Gold

segment. Excluded capital expenditures were $83,000 for 2003.
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NOTE 14—QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Quarter First Second Third Fourth
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)
2005
Net shipments $65,705 $79,721 $79,466 $74,499
Gross profit 20,465 23,989 25,902 23,588
Net earnings (loss} from continuing operations (2,902) (2,552) (1,604) (2,739)
Net earnings {loss} (149) (2,541) 123 (2,739)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations per common share (0.22) (0.19) {0.12) 0.21)
Net earnings (loss) per common share (0.01) (0.19) 0.01 (0.21)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations

per common share assuming dilution (0.22) (0.19) (0.12) 0.21)
Net earnings (loss) per common share assuming dilution (0.01) (0.19) 0.01 (0.21)
2004
Net shipments $70,422 $75,560 $76,149 $73,072
Gross profit 24,778 27,053 26,556 25,172
Net earnings {loss) from continuing operations 183 723 431 (521)
Net earnings (loss) 71 729 490 (400)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations per common share 0.01 0.05 0.03 (0.04)
Net earnings (loss) per common share 0.01 0.06 0.04 (0.03)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations ‘

per common share assuming dilution 0.01 0.05 0.03 (0.04)
Net earnings (loss) per common share assuming dilution 0.01 0.05 0.04 (0.03)

Earnings per share calculations for each of the quarters are based on the weighted average shares outstanding for each
period. The sum of the quarters may not necessarily be equal to the full year earnings per share amounts. The results of
operations have been restated to reflect the discontinued operations of investment real estate effective during the

second quarter of 2005.
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NOTE 15—RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONQUNCEMENTS
in December 2004, the FASB released Statement 123R,
“Share-Based Payment,” the revision to Statement 123
that will, beginning in 2005, require that the compensa-
tion cost relating to share-based payment transactions be
recognized in financial statements. Statement 123R pro-
vides expanded guidance on measuring the fair value of
share-based payment transactions. Statement 123R is
effective for the Company’s stock option plans for its first
quarter of fiscal 2006. The Company will implement
Statement 123R in connection with its next award of stock
options, and does not expect the impact to be significantly
different from that presented in the pro-forma disclosures
included in Note 10.
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In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement 154 “Accaunting
Changes and Error Corrections—-a replacement of APB
Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3.” Statement
154 changes the requirements for the accounting for and
reporting of a chahge in accounting principle. The
Statement requires retrospective application to prior peri-
ods’ financial statements to reflect the correction of an
error. This statement is effective for the Company| begin-
ning with our 2007 fiscal year.
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Corporate Information

Corporate Headquarters

1650 Tysons Boulevard, Suite 710
McLean, Virginia 22102
703-847-8670
www.therowecompanies.com

General Counsel
Silver, Freedman & Taff, LLP
Washington, D.C. 20007

Auditors
BDO Seidman, LLP
High Point, North Carolina 27265
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Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

P. 0. Box 43010
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800-633-4236

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

P. 0. Box 43010

Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3010
800-633-4236

Form 10-K }

Copies of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended November 27, 2005 filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission will be avail-
able in March. If you would like a copy without charge,
please write:

Deborah C. Jacks

2121 Gardner Street

Elliston, Virginia 24087

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held at 10:00a.m.
on Tuesday, April 11, 2006 at the Ritz Carlton—1700 Tysons
Blvd., McLean, Virginia.
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Stock Price and Dividend Data

Market Price

Quarter Ended High Low
2005

February 28 5.35 4.30
May 29 4.70 3.66
August 28 435 2.90
November 27 3.74 2.30
2004

February 29 6.03 3.00
May 30 5.45 3.50
August 29 5.80 4.61
November 28 5.50 4.56

The Company’'s common stock is currently traded on the
American Stock Exchange under the symbol ROW. On
November 27, 2005, the Company had approximately 925
stackholders of record.

The Company has not paid any cash dividends on its com-
mon stock during the past two years, and is prohibited
from paying cash dividends on its common stock under
the terms of the credit agreement governing its revolving
credit facility and Tranche B loan. See Note 5 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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